
 

 
 

Corporate Parenting Panel  AGENDA 
 
 
DATE: 
 

Tuesday 10 January 2012 
 

TIME: 
 

6.00 pm 
 

VENUE: 
 

Committee Room 6, 
Harrow Civic Centre 
 

 
 
 

 
 MEMBERSHIP      (Quorum 3) 
   
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Mitzi Green  

 
  Councillors: 

 
Margaret Davine 
Brian Gate 
 

Christine Bednell (VC) 
Janet Mote 
Lynda Seymour 
 

  
 

  
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. William Stoodley 
2. Raj Ray 
3. Varsha Parmar 
 

1. – 
2. John Nickolay 
3. Husain Akhtar 
 

  
 

 
 
 
 
 

Contact:  Mark Doherty, Democratic Services Officer 
Tel:  020 8416 8050    E-mail:  mark.doherty@harrow.gov.uk 
 



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 10 January 2012 

 AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. ATTENDANCE BY RESERVE MEMBERS    
 
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve Members. 

 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that the 

Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives after 

the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member can only act 
as a Member from the start of the next item of business on the agenda after 
his/her arrival. 

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST    
 
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from business to 

be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Panel; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room. 
 

3. MINUTES   (Pages 1 - 6) 
 
 That the minutes of the meeting held on 3 October 2011 be taken as read and 

signed as a correct record. 
 

4. PUBLIC QUESTIONS    
 
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents or organisations under the 

provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 51 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

5. PETITIONS    
 
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors under 

the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 49 (Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

6. DEPUTATIONS    
 
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Executive Procedure Rule 50 

(Part 4D of the Constitution). 
 

7. INFORMATION REPORT - ACTIVITY AND PERFORMANCE   (Pages 7 - 28) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
8. HOUSING FOR CHILDREN LOOKED AFTER WHO ARE LEAVING LOCAL 

AUTHORITY CARE   (Pages 29 - 36) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 10 January 2012 

9. DISPLAY FOR COUNCILLORS   (Pages 37 - 40) 
 
 Report of the Corporate Director of Children’s Services. 

 
10. INFORMATION REPORT - CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL WORK 

PROGRAMME 2011/12   (Pages 41 - 44) 
 
 Joint report of the Director of Legal and Governance Services and the Corporate 

Director of Children’s Services. 
 

11. ANY OTHER URGENT BUSINESS    
 
 Which cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
 AGENDA - PART II - NIL   

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 - 26 - 

 
 
 

CORPORATE PARENTING PANEL   
MINUTES 

 

3 OCTOBER 2011 
 
 
Chairman: * Councillor Mitzi Green 
   
Councillors: * Christine Bednell 

* Margaret Davine 
* Janet Mote  
 

* Varsha Parmar (3) 
* Lynda Seymour 
 

* Denotes Member present 
(3)  Denotes category of Reserve Member 
 
 

44. Attendance by Reserve Members   
 
RESOLVED:  To note the attendance of the following duly constituted 
Reserve Member: 
  
Ordinary Member 
  

Reserve Member 
Councillor Brian Gate Councillor Varsha Parmar 
 

45. Declarations of Interest   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that there were no declarations of interests made by 
Members. 
 

46. Minutes   
 
RESOLVED:  That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 July 2011, be taken 
as read and signed as a correct record. 
 

47. Public Questions, Petitions and Deputations   
 
RESOLVED:  To note that no public questions were put, or petitions or 
deputations received at this meeting. 

Agenda Item 3 
Pages 1 to 6 

1



 

- 27 -  Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 

 
RESOLVED ITEMS   
 

48. Information Report - Activity and Performance   
 
An officer introduced a report which set out key data relating to Children 
Looked After (CLA) and Children with Child Protection Plans (CPP).  The 
report also included the performance position for key indicators for Children’s 
Social Care.  The officer advised that: 
 
• overall performance was good, with six adoptions being granted; 
 
• new key performance indicators had been devised to monitor areas 

such as absence from school. 
 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 
 
• the successful adoption of younger CLA meant that the 16-17 year old 

cohort remained higher than in previous years; 
 
• out of the 19 CLA that took their GCSE’s, 6 had special educational 

needs and 2 were seeking asylum.  These children studied meaningful 
courses that were appropriate to their learning and sat alternative 
examinations; 

 
• placement disruptions in May/June 2011 prevented 2 CLA from sitting 

their GCSE examinations; 
 
• cumulative performance figures reflected that the cohort taking their 

GCSEs may not have engaged in the same way throughout the course 
of the school year; 

 
• each child had a Personal Education Plan (PEP).  An allowance of 

£500 could be granted should a child have a specific need that could 
not be catered for through their plan; 

 
• the Council was seeking to recruit a permanent Virtual Headteacher 

(VHT).  An action plan which took account of the work undertaken by 
previous VHTs to enable the new recruit to target areas of greatest 
priority was being compiled.  Six candidates had been short-listed for 
interview.  A new VHT could be in place by November 2011, 
dependant on the duration of notice; 

 
• including a column in the report which highlighted how many CLA were 

in each key performance category would be considered. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

49. Information Report - Annual Report Fostering and Adoption   
 
An officer introduced a report which provided a summary of the adoption and 
fostering service in Harrow.  He advised that: 
 

2



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 - 28 - 

• the adoption and fostering service was also responsible for areas such 
as Inter-country Adoption, Special Guardianship and Adoption 
Counselling; 

 
• the work being conducted was that of a standard which was being 

recognised nationally; 
 
• short break placements funded by the Government Aiming High grant, 

provided children with disabilities the opportunity to remain at home 
and have regular breaks with their families. 

 
In response to a question, officers advised that Children Looked After were 
not obliged to leave their placement when they reached eighteen years of 
age.  Support was provided until they felt confident enough to make that 
transition.  The decision to leave their placement was taken in conjunction 
with each young person, their social worker and the Placements Team and 
was considered on an individual basis.  Staff at the Honeypot Lane 
Residential Unit assisted young people in making such decisions.  The 
Leaving Care Team also offered support during this time to ensure a smooth 
transition to independence. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

50. Celebrating Achievements of Children Looked After - Update   
 
An officer provided a verbal update on the progress made with the 
arrangements for celebrating the achievements of Children Looked After 
(CLA) event.  She advised that the event would: 
 
• take place at the Harrow Arts Centre on 16 November 2011; 
 
• be attended by CLA and care leavers; 
 
• be arranged with the assistance of Beyond Limits; 
 
• include refreshments and entertainment; 
 
• be open to all birth parents; 
 
• welcome nominations for awards in categories such as participation 

and improved behaviour. 
 
The Chairman confirmed that as Corporate Parents, all Harrow’s Councillors 
would be invited to the event.  Due to limited capacity, the invite would need 
to be accepted within a set timeframe. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the update be noted. 
 

51. INFORMATION REPORT - Children's Services Complaints Annual Report 
2010-11   
 
An officer introduced a report which set out the statutory Children’s Services 
Annual Report for 2010/11.  He advised that: 

3



 

- 29 -  Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 

 
• a significant amount of work had been undertaken to make feedback 

more accessible to young people.  This included providing a free-
phone telephone number and a text messaging service; 

 
• since the introduction of mediation in 2005/06 the number of 

complaints that were escalated had continued to significantly reduce.  
Feedback from young people on mediation was positive; 

 
In response to questions, officers advised that: 
 
• mediation participants were also informed that their complaint could be 

escalated should they wish to do so; 
 
• correspondence between parents reflected that the focus was on what 

the young person wanted; 
 
• an independent person could be enlisted to advise on what would be 

best in particular cases. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the report be noted. 
 

52. INFORMATION REPORT - Corporate Parenting Panel Work Programme 
2011/12   
 
The Chairman of the Panel introduced a Work Programme which listed topics 
for the Panel to consider at each meeting.  This did not preclude further items 
from being presented to the Committee if necessary.  She reiterated that the 
Work Programme would be a standing item at the end of each agenda for 
information purposes. 
 
An officer proposed that the Work Programme be shared with those from 
Beyond Limits to promote two-way engagement and allow them to suggest 
topics which they believe the Panel should consider. 
 
RESOLVED:  That  
 
(1) the Corporate Parenting Panel Work Programme 2011/12 be agreed; 

 
(2) the Work Programme be shared with those from Beyond Limits. 
 

53. Further Announcements   
 
Criminal Record Bureau (CRB) Checks 
 
To advocate transparency and as a matter of best practice, the Chairman 
reminded Members of the need to ensure that a CRB check had been 
conducted within the last three years.  Information on how to complete the 
check would be sent to those who were unfamiliar with the process. 
 

4



 

Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 - 30 - 

Meeting with Beyond Limits 
 
The Chairman requested officers to liaise with Beyond Limits to arrange 
another less formal meeting at a time and venue that was suitable for them. 
 
Executive Summary 
 
An officer would undertake to compile an executive summary of the 
discussion at future Corporate Parenting Panel meetings to ensure that topics 
considered were recorded in a manner which was more attractive to young 
people. 
 
RESOLVED:  That the items be noted. 
 
(Note:  The meeting, having commenced at 6.00 pm, closed at 7.15 pm). 
 
 
 
 
 
(Signed) COUNCILLOR MITZI GREEN 
Chairman 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5



 

- 31 -  Corporate Parenting Panel - 3 October 2011 

Officer Attendance: 
 
Gail Hancock - Head of Service, Safeguarding and Family Support 
 
Peter Tolley - Service Manager, Family Placement and Support 
 
Dipika Patel - Team Manager, Children's Social Care, Performance & Data 
Quality 
 
Adeline Abraham – Children in Care Participation Officer 

6



 

 
REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date: 
 

10 January 2012 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – 
Activity and Performance 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 
 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1: CLA & CPP Activity and 
Performance Report 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report is for information and sets out key data relating to Children Looked 
After (CLA) and Children with Child Protection Plans (CPP), plus performance 
position for Key Indicators for Children’s Social Care. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 7 
Pages 7 to 28 

7



$n4uozjlo.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Key Points:   
 

• Data is shown to end of November 2011. 
• 6 adoptions/SGOs granted in 2011/12 so far. 
• Proportion of CLA aged 16-17 remains higher than in previous years.   
• Number of CPP has decreased and is now lower than the number of 

CLA. 
• New indicators to monitor school attendance and exclusion of CLA.   
• New CLA health data section is added. 

 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
All information is contained within the report 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
There are no financial implications arising from this report. 
 
Section 5 – Equalities Implications 
 

An Equality Impact Assessment has not been carried out.  This information 
report forms part of the ongoing monitoring for corporate parenting. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
The risk relating to workload and staffing for child protection is already 
included in the corporate risk register. 
Risk included on Directorate risk register?  Yes 
Separate risk register in place?  No 
  
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities 
 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
 
 
   on behalf of the 
Name:  Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
 
Date:   8 December 2011 
 

   

 
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:   

8



$n4uozjlo.doc 

 
David Harrington, Service Manager, Performance 
020 8424 9248 david.harrington@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Dipika Patel, Senior Performance Officer, Children’s Social Care 
020 8424 9258 dipika.patel@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: None 
 

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



 
   

Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1: 
 

Co
rp

or
ate

 Pa
ren

tin
g R

ep
or

t 
 

Ja
nu

ar
y 2

01
2 

     
Ch

ild
ren

 Lo
ok

ed
 Af

ter
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Su

bje
ct 

to 
a C

hil
d P

rot
ec

tio
n P

lan
 

 

(A
cti

vit
y t

o e
nd

 of
 N

ov
em

be
r 2

01
1) 

11



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 2 
of 

17
 

CO
NT

EN
TS
 

 

 
PA

RT
 A:

 
CH

ILD
RE

N 
LO

OK
ED

 A
FT

ER
 (C

LA
)..
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
3 

1) 
CL

A B
Y A

GE
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..3
 

2) 
CL

A B
Y E

TH
NI
CI
TY

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...
4 

3) 
CL

A B
Y G

EN
DE

R.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.5 
4) 

CL
A B

Y P
LA

CE
ME

NT
 TY

PE
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..6
 

5) 
CL

A B
Y C

AT
EG

OR
Y O

F N
EE

D.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
7 

6) 
CL

A E
DU

CA
TIO

NA
L A

TT
AIN

ME
NT

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

..8
 

7) 
CL

A H
EA

LT
H 
DA

TA
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
...
8 

8) 
CL

A -
 O
TH

ER
 D
AT

A.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
.8 

 
PA

RT
 B:

 
CH

ILD
RE

N 
SU

BJ
EC

T T
O 

A 
CH

ILD
 PR

OT
EC

TIO
N 

PL
AN

 (C
PP

)..
....

....
....

....
....

....
...
9 

9) 
CP

P B
Y A

GE
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.9 
10

) C
PP

 BY
 ET

HN
IC
ITY

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

10
 

11
) C

PP
 BY

 G
EN

DE
R.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
...
11

 
12

) C
PP

 BY
 C
AT

EG
OR

Y O
F A

BU
SE

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
12

 
13

) C
PP

 BY
 D
UR

AT
IO
N 
OF

 PL
AN

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

13
 

 
PA

RT
 C
: 

AD
DI

TIO
NA

L I
NF

OR
MA

TIO
N.

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.1
4 

14
) N

UM
BE

RS
 O
F C

LA
 & 

CP
P.
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

.14
 

15
) K

EY
 PE

RF
OR

MA
NC

E I
ND

IC
AT

OR
S F

OR
 Q
2 2

01
1 (

SE
PT

EM
BE

R)
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

....
....

...
15

 

12



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 3 
of 

17
 

 Pa
rt 

A:
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Lo

ok
ed

 A
fte

r (
CL

A)
 

 Th
ere

 w
ere

 15
4 C

LA
 in
 H
arr

ow
 on

 30
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
1. 

Th
ere

 w
ere

 al
so
 an

 ad
dit
ion

al 
4 c

hil
dre

n r
ec
eiv

ing
 re

sp
ite
 ca

re 
/ s
ho

rt t
erm

 br
ea

ks
 (th

es
e a

re 
no

t in
clu

de
d i
n t

he
 nu

mb
ers

 in
 th

is 
rep

ort
). 

 

1) 
CL

A 
by

 A
ge

 
 

31
/03

/20
09

31
/03

/20
10

31
/03

/20
11

31
/08

/20
11

30
/11

/20
11

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
5

10
4

12
13

1-4
 yr

s
15

11
12

11
11

5-9
 yr

s
13

16
10

11
16

10
-15

 yr
s

77
65

37
49

45
16

-17
 yr

s
39

58
67

64
69

0102030405060708090

Number of CLA

CLA
 by

 ag
e g

rou
p

 
 

13



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 4 
of 

17
 

 2) 
CL

A 
by

 E
thn

ici
ty 

  

31
/0

3/
20

09
31

/0
3/

20
10

31
/0

3/
20

11
31

/0
8/

20
11

30
/1

1/
20

11
As

ian
 

39
34

31
26

27
Bl

ac
k 

18
20

23
26

31
M

ixe
d 

33
37

31
34

32
Ot

he
r

8
17

15
16

18
W

hi
te

 
51

52
40

45
46

0102030405060

Number of CLA

CLA
 by

 et
hn

icit
y

14



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 5 
of 

17
 

 

3) 
CL

A 
by

 G
en

de
r 

  

31
/0
3/
20

10
31

/0
3/
20

11
31

/0
8/
20

11
30

/1
1/
20

11
Fe
m
ale

52
47

51
57

M
ale

10
8

93
95

97
Un

kn
ow

n
0

0
1

0

02040608010
0

12
0

Number of CLA

CLA
 by

 et
hn

icit
y

15



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 6 
of 

17
 Pla

ce
me

nt 
Ty

pe
Pla
ce
d f
or 
Ad
op
tio
n

0
Fo
ste
r p
lac
em
en
t w
ith
 R
ela
tiv
e o
r F
rie
nd

8
Fo
ste
r C
are
r - 
Inh
ou
se

64
Fo
ste
r C
are
r - 
Ag
en
cy

26
Se
cu
re 
Un
it

2
Yo
un
g O

ffe
nd
ers
 In
sti
tut
ion
 or
 Pr
iso
n

0
Pla
ce
d w
ith
 Pa
ren
ts

0
Ind
ep
en
de
nt 
Liv
ing

23
Re
sid
en
tia
l S
ch
oo
ls

9
Ch
ild
ren
's H

om
es

15
Ot
he
r re
sid
en
tia
l A
cc
om
mo
da
tio
n

4
Mi
ss
ing
 fro
m 
Pla
ce
me
nt

3
Gr

an
d T

ota
l

15
4

 

4) 
CL

A 
by

 P
lac

em
en

t T
yp

e  
  

  

Pla
ce
d f
or 

Ad
op
tio
n

0%
Fo
ste

r p
lac

em
en
t 

wit
h R

ela
tiv
e o

r 
Fri
en
d

5%

Fo
ste

r C
are

r -
Inh

ou
se

41
%

Fo
ste

r C
are

r -
Ag
en
cy

17
%

Se
cu
re 
Un

it
1%

Yo
un
g O

ffe
nd
ers

 
Ins

titu
tio
n o

r 
Pri

son 0%

Pla
ce
d w

ith
 

Pa
ren

ts
0%

Ind
ep
en
de
nt 

Liv
ing 15
%

Re
sid

en
tia
l 

Sch
oo
ls

6%

Ch
ild
ren

's H
om

es
10
%

Ot
he
r re

sid
en
tia
l 

Ac
co
mm

od
ati
on

3%
Mi
ssi
ng
 fro

m 
Pla

ce
me

nt
2%

Pla
cem

en
t ty

pe
 of

 CL
A

16



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 7 
of 

17
 

5) 
CL

A 
by

 C
ate

go
ry 

of 
Ne

ed
 

 Th
e b

rea
kd
ow

n o
f c
ate

go
ry 

of 
ne

ed
 as

 re
co
rde

d w
he

n a
 ch

ild
 be

co
me

s l
oo
ke
d a

fte
r. 

  

31
/03

/20
09

31
/03

/20
10

31
/03

/20
11

31
/08

/20
11

30
/11

/20
11

Ab
sen

t p
are

nti
ng

32
30

24
21

26
Ab

use
 or

 Ne
gle

ct
70

80
69

78
80

Ch
ild

 Di
sab

ilit
y

15
11

11
10

8
Fam

ily 
dy

sfu
nc

tio
n

15
16

18
20

20
Fam

ily 
in 

acu
te 

str
ess

6
6

8
9

9
Lo

w i
nc

om
e

0
1

0
0

0
Pa

ren
tal

 illn
ess

 or
 dis

ab
ilit

y
4

9
4

4
6

So
cia

lly 
un

acc
ep

tab
le 

be
ha

vio
ur

7
7

6
5

5

0102030405060708090 Number of CLA

CLA
 by

 ca
teg

ory
 of

 ne
ed

 
 

17



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 8 
of 

17
 

6) 
CL

A 
ed

uc
ati

on
al 

att
ain

me
nt 

 

            
 

7) 
CL

A 
he

alt
h d

ata
 

 

      
 

8) 
CL

A 
- O

the
r D

ata
 

 

         

(C
lie

nts
 lo

ok
ed

 af
ter

 fo
r o

ve
r a

 ye
ar 

at 
31

/03
/11

) 
20

07
 

20
08

 
20

09
  

20
10

 
20

11
 

(pr
ov

) 
To

tal
 ch

ild
ren

 in
 K

S2
 co

ho
rt:

 
8 

7 
2 

2 
2 

Att
ain

ed
 at

 le
as
t L

ev
el 
4 i
n M

ath
s a

t e
nd

 of
 KS

2 
25

% 
43

% 
50

% 
50

% 
50

% 
Att

ain
ed

 at
 le
as
t L

ev
el 
4 i
n E

ng
lish

 at
 en

d o
f K

S2
 

50
% 

43
% 

50
% 

50
% 

0%
 

Att
ain

ed
 at

 le
as
t L

ev
el 
4 i
n b

oth
 En

gli
sh
 an

d M
ath

s 
ne

w 
ne

w 
ne

w 
ne

w 
0%

 
To

tal
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 in
 G

CS
E c

oh
or

t: 
13

 
9 

14
 

17
 

19
 

GC
SE

: A
tta

ine
d a

t le
as
t 1

 A*
 - G

  
46

.2%
 

66
.7%

 
57

.1%
 

52
.9%

 
47

.4%
 

GC
SE

: A
tta

ine
d 5

 or
 m

ore
 A*

 - G
   

43
.2%

 
33

.3%
 

57
.1%

 
41

.2%
 

31
.6%

 
GC

SE
: A

tta
ine

d 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
 - C

 
 5.

4%
 

11
.1%

 
14

.3%
 

11
.8%

 
5.3

% 
GC

SE
: A

tta
ine

d 5
 or

 m
ore

 A*
 - C

 in
c E

ng
. &

 M
ath

s 
ne

w 
ne

w 
 

7.1
% 

11
.8%

 
5.3

% 

(C
lie

nts
 lo

ok
ed

 af
ter

 fo
r o

ve
r a

 ye
ar)

 
31

 M
ar 

20
11

 
31

 A
ug

 
20

11
 

30
 N

ov
 

20
11

 
He

alt
h C

he
ck
s o

f C
LA

 
90

% 
79

% 
85

% 
De

nta
l C

he
ck
s o

f C
LA

  
92

% 
73

% 
73

% 
He

alt
h /

 D
en

tal
 C
he

ck
s o

f C
LA

 (o
ld 
PA

F C
19

) 
91

% 
76

% 
79

% 

 
31

 M
ay

  
20

10
 

31
 A

ug
 

20
10

 
30

 N
ov

 
20

10
 

31
 Ja

n 
20

11
 

31
 A

ug
 

20
11

 
30

 N
ov

 
20

11
 

Nu
mb

er 
of 

ch
ild
ren

 pl
ac
ed

 ou
t o

f b
oro

ug
h: 

 
68

 
81

 
70

 
71

 
74

 
85

 
Of
 th

os
e, 

wh
o a

re 
pla

ce
d m

ore
 th

an
 20

 m
ile
s: 

28
 

31
 

32
 

33
 

31
 

30
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
So

cia
l W

ork
 Al

loc
ati
on

:  
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
10

0%
 

10
0%

 
99

.7%
 

98
.0%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Ad
op

tio
ns
 & 

Sp
ec
ial
 G
ua

rdi
an

sh
ip 
Or

de
rs:

 
(ou

r ta
rge

t fo
r a

do
pti
on
s i
s 1

4) 
13

 fo
r 

20
09

-10
 
15

 to
 

da
te 

16
 to

 
da

te 
19

 fo
r 

20
10

-11
 
5 t

o 
da

te 
6 t

o 
da

te 

18



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 9 
of 

17
 

Pa
rt 

B:
 

Ch
ild

ren
 Su

bje
ct 

to 
a C

hil
d P

ro
tec

tio
n P

lan
 (C

PP
) 

 
Th

ere
 w
ere

 14
7 c

hil
dre

n w
ho

 w
ere

 su
bje

ct 
to 

a C
hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n P

lan
 in
 H
arr

ow
 on

 30
 N
ov
em

be
r 2

01
1. 

  

9) 
CP

P b
y A

ge
 

 

31
/03

/20
09

31
/03

/20
10

31
/03

/20
11

31
/08

/20
11

30
/11

/20
11

Un
de

r 1
 ye

ar
19

14
14

18
21

1-4
 yr

s
32

50
43

39
35

5-9
 yr

s
49

58
44

49
41

10
-15

 yr
s

51
59

53
58

48
16

-17
 yr

s
8

7
8

5
2

010203040506070

Number of CPP

CP
P b

y a
ge

 

19



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 10
 of

 17
 

 10
) C

PP
 by

 et
hn

ici
ty 

  

31
/03
/20
09

31
/03
/20
10

31
/03
/20
11

31
/08
/20
11

30
/11
/20
11

As
ian
 

32
32

37
28

22
Bla
ck 

30
24

31
34

35
Mi
xe
d 

31
50

35
31

27
Ot
he
r

15
17

9
11

6
Wh
ite
 

51
65

50
65

57

010203040506070

Number of CPP

CP
P b

y e
thn

icit
y

 
 

20



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 11
 of

 17
 

 

11
) C

PP
 by

 ge
nd

er 
  

31
/0
3/
20

10
31

/0
3/
20

11
31

/0
8/
20

11
30

/1
1/
20

11
Fe
m
ale

89
77

77
65

M
ale

99
84

90
79

Un
kn
ow

n
1

2
3

02040608010
0

12
0

Number of CLA

CLA
 by

 et
hn

icit
y

 
   

21



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 12
 of

 17
 

 

12
) C

PP
 by

 C
ate

go
ry 

of 
Ab

us
e 

  

31
/03
/20
09

31
/03
/20
10

31
/03
/20
11

31
/08
/20
11

30
/11
/20
11

Em
oti
on
al 
ab
use

28
40

50
50

43
Ne
gle
ct

10
9

12
2

95
10
6

89
Ph
ysi
cal
 ab
use

19
18

10
6

4
Se
xu
al a
bu
se

3
8

7
7

11

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

Number of CPP

CP
P b

y c
ate

go
ry 

of 
ab

use

 
 

22



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 13
 of

 17
 

 13
) C

PP
 by

 du
rat

ion
 of

 pl
an

 
  

31
/0

3/
20

09
31

/0
3/

20
10

31
/0

3/
20

11
31

/0
8/

20
11

30
/1

1/
20

11
Un

de
r 3

 m
on

th
s

21
33

22
49

22
3 t

o 
6 

m
on

th
s

39
42

35
29

38
6 t

o 
12

 m
on

th
s

66
37

37
24

27
12

 to
 2

4 
m

on
th

s
17

55
44

40
39

Ov
er

 24
 m

on
th

s 
16

21
24

27
21

010203040506070

Number of CPP

CP
P b

y d
ura

tio
n o

f p
lan

 
  

23



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 14
 of

 17
 

 Pa
rt 

C:
 

Ad
dit

ion
al 

Inf
or

ma
tio

n 
 14
) N

um
be

rs 
of 

CL
A 
& 
CP

P 
 

02040608010
0

12
0

14
0

16
0

18
0

20
0

22
0 Ap

r-0
6

Oc
t-0

6
Ap

r-0
7

Oc
t-0

7
Ap

r-0
8

Oc
t-0

8
Ap

r-0
9

Oc
t-0

9
Ap

r-1
0

Oc
t-1

0
Ap

r-1
1

Oc
t-1

1
M
on

th

Nu
mb

ers
 of

 Lo
oke

d A
fte

r C
hil

dre
n a

nd
 Ch

ild
ren

 wi
th 

a C
hil

d 
Pro

tec
tio

n P
lan

 (sn
ap

sho
t)

CL
A

CP
P

 

24



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 15
 of

 17
 

 15
) K

ey
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce
 In

dic
ato

rs 
for

 Q
2 2

01
1 (

Se
pte

mb
er)

 
 Pr
ev
. 

NI
 

Re
f:

Ind
ica
tor
 D
es
cri
pti
on

Po
lar
ity

Ha
rro
w 

ac
tua
l 

20
10
/11

Ha
rro
w 

tar
ge
t 

20
11
/12

Ha
rro
w 

ac
tua
l Q
1 

20
11
/12

Ha
rro
w 

ac
tua
l Q
2 

20
11
/12

RA
G 

St
atu
s 

Q2
Co
mm

en
tar
y Q

2

Nu
mb

ers
 of

 ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 C
PP

 fo
r o

ve
r 2

 ye
ars

�
Ne

w

22
 (Q

1)
20
 (Q

2)
18
 (Q

3)
16
 (Q

4) 
(pr

ov
)

28
20

LG

60
(P
AF

 C
64
) T

im
ing

 of
 C
ore

 As
se
ss
me

nts
 (N

I 6
0)

�
80
.50

%
83
%

92
.11

%
88
.75

%
HG

61
Sta

bil
ity 

of 
LA

C 
ad
op
ted

 fo
llo
win

g a
n a

ge
nc
y 

de
cis

ion
�

83
.30

%
80
%

10
0%

10
0%

HG

62
(B
V4

9) 
PA

F A
1 S

tab
ility

 of
 Pl

ac
em

en
ts 
of 

CL
A

�
15
%

2.7
5%

(Q
1) 

 
5.5

% 
(Q

2) 
8.2

5%
(Q

3) 
 

 11
% 

An
nu

al

2.8
6%

10
.81

%
HR

He
ad
lin
e: 

Inc
rea

se
 in
 Pl

ac
em

en
t In

sta
bil
ity.

Co
nte
xt:
 C
on
tin
ue
d s

uc
ce
ss
 w
ith
 ad

op
tio
ns
 le
av
es
 an

 ol
de
r a

nd
 le
ss
 

sta
ble

 co
ho
rt w

hic
h p

uts
 pr

es
su
re 

on
 st
ab
ility

 in
dic

ato
rs.

 So
me

 
ch
ild
ren

 ha
ve
 ha

d m
ov
es
 du

e t
o e

me
rge

nc
y o

r ti
me

 lim
ite
d 

pla
ce
me

nts
. 9
 ou

t o
f 1

6 c
hil
dre

n w
ith
 3+

 m
ov
es
 ar

e t
ee
na
ge

rs.
   

Ac
tio
n: 

Re
vie

w 
of 

Te
en
ag

e P
lac

em
en
t S

tra
teg

y, 
 m

ore
 ro

bu
st 

sc
rut

iny
 & 

tra
ck
ing

 of
 pl
ac
em

en
t m

ov
es
 & 

Re
vie

w 
Ind

ivid
ua
l 

Pla
ce
me

nt 
Su

pp
ort

 Pl
an
s.

63
PA

F D
78
 Lo

ng
 te
rm

 st
ab
ility

 of
 C
LA

 (2
.5 
ye
ars

) (N
I 

63
)

�
66
.70

%
68
%

69
.23

%
65
.00

%
A

64
(P
AF

 C
21
) D

ura
tio
n o

n t
he
 C
hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n R

eg
ist
er
↔

17
.20

%
12
%

16
.28

%
20
.69

%
HR

He
ad
lin
e:  

W
e c

on
tin
ue
 no

t to
 be

 on
 ta
rge

t.  
A c

oo
rdi
na
ted

 st
rat

eg
y 

is 
in 
pla

ce
. 

Co
nte
xt:

 Fo
llo
win

g t
he
 Pe

ter
 C
on
ne
lly 

ca
se
 th
e r

ise
 of

 C
hil
d 

Pr
ote

cti
on
 ac

tiv
ity 

ma
y h

av
e c

on
trib

ute
d t
o a

n i
nc
rea

se
 in
 th
is 

ind
ica

tor
. H

ow
ev
er,

 th
e n

um
be
r o

f p
lan

s a
re 

no
w 
fal
lin
g w

ith
ou
t a
 

sim
ila
r d

ec
rea

se
 in
 th
e i
nd
ica

tor
. 

Ac
tio
n:  

 C
ha
lle
ng
e p

an
els

 w
ill b

e c
on
ve
ne
d t
o l
oo
k a

t c
hil
dre

n w
ith
 

Ch
ild
 Pr

ote
cti
on

 pl
an
s o

f 1
5 m

on
ths

 pl
us
. C

hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n A

dv
iso

rs 
wil

l b
e a

cti
ve
ly i

nv
olv

ed
 in
 th
e p

lan
nin

g o
f C

hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n w

ork
 at
 

ke
y m

ile
sto

ne
s a

nd
 th
e r

ole
 of

 th
e C

ore
 G
rou

ps
 w
ill b

e s
tre

ng
the

ne
d 

to 
en
su
re 

tha
t th

e C
hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n p

lan
 is
 pr

og
res

se
d b

etw
ee
n 

rev
iew

s.
65

(P
AF

 A3
) R

e-r
eg
ist
rat

ion
s o

n t
he
 C
P R

eg
ist
er

↔
8.8

0%
10
%

0
10
.26

A
66

(P
AF

 C
68
) T

im
eli
ne

ss
 of

 R
ev
iew

s o
f L

oo
ke
d A

fte
r 

Ch
ild
ren

�
96
.80

%
10
0%

10
0%

99
%

A
 

    

25



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 16
 of

 17
 

  

67
 (B

V 1
62
 PA

F C
20

) R
ev
iew

s o
f C

hil
d P

rot
ec
tio
n 

ca
se
s

�
10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

LG
14
7

Ca
re 

lea
ve
rs 

in 
su
ita
ble

 ac
co
mm

od
ati
on
 (5

03
7S

C)
�

91
.70

%
88
%

10
0.0

0%
88
.88

%
LG

14
8

Ca
re 

lea
ve
rs 

in 
em

plo
ym

en
t, e

du
ca
tio
n o

r tr
ain

ing
�

66
.70

%
75
%

66
.67

%
33
.33

%
HR

He
ad

lin
e:
  : 
Th

e t
ea
m 

is 
in 
tou

ch
 w
ith
 10

0%
 of

 ca
re 

lea
ve
rs,

 of
fer

ing
 

su
pp
ort

 an
d a

dv
ice

 fo
r th

em
 to

 ac
ce
ss
 em

plo
ym

en
t, e

du
ca
tio
n a

nd
 

tra
ini
ng

. 
Co

nt
ex

t: 
Th

is 
is 
a s

ma
ll c

oh
ort

 an
d s

ma
ll c

ha
ng
es
 ha

ve
 a 

big
 im

pa
ct 

on
 th
is 
ind

ica
tor

. C
urr

en
tly 

of 
the

 9 
ide

nti
fie
d a

s e
lig
ibl
e f

or 
thi
s 

ind
ica

tor
 3 
are

 in
 EE

T a
nd
 1 
is 
no
t re

co
rde

d. 
All
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 ha
ve
 

ac
ce
ss
 to
 ca

ree
rs 

ad
vic

e a
nd
 gu

ida
nc
e a

s w
ell
 as

 ad
dit
ion

al 
su
pp
ort

.  
Ac

tio
n:
 C
are

 le
av
ers

 ar
e e

nc
ou
rag

ed
 to

 ta
ke
 pa

rt i
n v

ari
ou

s p
roj

ec
ts 

su
ch
 as

 Th
e V

Ta
len

t v
olu

nte
eri
ng
 sc

he
me

 an
d o

the
r w

ork
 

ex
pe
rie
nc
e a

nd
 ot
he
r v

olu
nte

eri
ng
 pr

oje
cts

 to
 im

pro
ve
 th

eir
 ch

an
ce
s 

of 
em

plo
ym

en
t. A

ll c
are

 le
av
ers

 m
ov
ing

 on
to 
hig

he
r e

du
ca
tio
n 

rec
eiv

e a
 on

e o
ff a

dd
itio

na
l g
ran

t o
f £

20
00
 an

d o
ng
oin

g s
up
po

rt u
nti
l 

the
 en

d o
f th

eir
 co

urs
e.

PA
F C

19
 Th

e H
ea
lth
 of

 C
hil
dre

n L
oo

ke
d A

fte
r

�
90
.60

%
95
%

84
.71

%
79
.49

%
HR

He
ad

lin
e:
 Th

is 
is 
an
 ar

ea
 of

 ac
tiv
ity 

tha
t s
ho
ws

 va
ria
tio
n i
n 

pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
.

Co
nt

ex
t:   

Th
e C

hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d A

fte
r (C

LA
) N

urs
e a

nd
 th
e 

Pe
rfo

rm
an
ce
 M
an

ag
em

en
t T

ea
m 

ha
ve
 ac

co
un
ted

 fo
r a

ll t
he
 ch

ild
ren

 
wh

o d
o n

ot 
ha
ve
 he

alt
h a

ss
es
sm

en
ts 
an
d d

en
tal
 ch

ec
ks
. T

he
y 

co
ns
ist
 of

 C
hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d A

fte
r w

ho
 ar

e m
iss

ing
 fro

m 
ca
re 

or 
wh

o 
ref

us
e t
o p

art
icip

ate
. T

he
 C
LA

 N
urs

e  
is 
co
ns
ide

rin
g d

iffe
ren

t w
ay
s o

f 
en
ga
gin

g t
he
se
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

. 
Ac

tio
n:
  T

he
 C
LA

 N
urs

e p
rov

ide
s r

eg
ula

r u
pd
ate

s t
o e

ns
ure

 th
at 
all
 

inf
orm

ati
on
 an

d c
he
ck
s a

re 
up
 to
 da

te.
 

Ini
tia
l a
ss
es
sm

en
ts 
co
mp

let
ed
 w
ith
in 
10

 da
ys

�
85
.50

%
85
%

90
.91

%
81
.92

%
A

 %
 of

 ch
ild
ren

 lo
ok
ed
 af

ter
 in
 re

sid
en
tia
l 

ac
co
mm

od
ati
on

�
20
.90

%
20
%

17
.14

%
21
.62

%
LR

BV
 16

3 P
AF

 C
23
 Ad

op
tio
ns
 of

 C
hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d 

Aft
er

↔
22
.60

%
3.5

% 
(Q

1) 
7%

 (Q
2)

2.3
8%

6.3
8%

LR
% 

of 
ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 a 
Ch

ild
 Pr

ote
cti
on
 Pl

an
s  
all
oc
ate

d 
to 
a q

ua
lifie

d S
oc
ial
 W

ork
er

�
99
.40

%
10
0%

10
0%

10
0%

LG
% 

of 
Ch

ild
ren

 Lo
ok
ed
 Af

ter
 al
loc

ate
d t
o a

 qu
ali
fie
d 

So
cia

l W
ork

er 
�

99
%

10
0%

10
0%

97
.30

%
A

PA
F C

24
 C
hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d A

fte
r A

bs
en
t fr

om
 Sc

ho
ol 

20
.78

%
0%

 (Q
2) 

An
nu
al 
12
%

20
.78

%
0.0

0%
LG

Sta
rt o

f n
ew

 ac
ad
em

ic 
ye
ar

PA
F C

63
 Pa

rtic
ipa

tio
n o

f C
LA

 in
 R
ev
iew

s
�

94
.10

%
95
%

97
.50

%
92
.59

%
A

 
   

26



Cr
ea

ted
 by

 th
e P

erf
orm

an
ce

 Te
am

 
 

Pa
ge

 17
 of

 17
 

Pe
rce

nta
ge
 of

 C
hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d A

fte
r w

ith
 pe

rm
an
en
t 

ex
clu

sio
ns
 am

on
gs
t s
ch
oo
l a
ge

 C
hil
dre

n L
oo
ke
d 

Aft
er,

 in
 qu

art
er

�
Ne

w
0%

0
0%

HG

Pe
rce

nta
ge
 of

 C
LA

 w
ith
 fix

ed
 te
rm

 ex
clu

sio
ns
 

am
on
gs
t s
ch
oo
l a
ge

 C
LA

, in
 qu

art
er 

�
Ne

w
15
% 

(Q
1) 

  
1%

 (Q
2) 

5%
 

(Q
3) 

10
%(

Q4
)

6.4
9%

    
    

(S
um

me
r 

ter
m 

on
ly 

ag
ain

st 
tar

ge
t o
f 

5%
)

4.9
1%

HR

He
ad

lin
e: 
Ne

w 
ind

ica
tor

 - A
ll C

LA
 in
 sc

ho
ol 
- F

ixe
d t
erm

 ex
clu

sio
ns
 

are
 hi
gh
. 

Co
nte

xt:
 Th

is 
is 
a n

ew
 lo
ca
l in

dic
ato

r, a
nd
 th
ere

 is
 no

 be
nc
h m

ark
ing

 
da
ta.
 pr

ov
isio

na
l ta

rge
ts 
ha
ve
 be

en
 se

t a
t q
ua
rte

rly
 in
ter

va
ls 
& r

ela
te 

to 
the

 ac
ad
em

ic 
ye
ar 

& t
he

ref
ore

 ha
ve
 a 
dif
fer

en
t o
rde

r. I
n t
he
 fir

st 
mo

nth
 of

 th
e n

ew
 ac

ad
em

ic 
ye
ar 

we
 ha

ve
 ha

d 3
 ch

ild
ren

 re
ce
ivin

g 
fix
ed
 te
rm

 ex
clu

sio
ns
. 1
 fro

m 
a H

arr
ow

 Pr
im
ary

 Sc
ho
ol,
 2 
se
co
nd
ary

 
sc
ho
ols

 (H
illin

gd
on
 & 

He
rts
).  

Ac
tio
n: 

 An
 Ed

uc
ati
on
 do

cu
me

nt 
is 
be
ing

 pr
ep
are

d t
o w

ork
 w
ith
 

sc
ho
ols

 re
ga
rdi
ng
 su

pp
ort

ing
 C
LA

 an
d p

rev
en
tin
g f

ixe
d t
erm

 
ex
clu

sio
ns
, d
ata

 co
lle
cti
on
 w
ith
 ne

igh
bo

urs
 w
ou
ld 
be

 re
qu
ire
d t
o l
oo
k 

at 
ide

nti
fyin

g a
 su

ita
ble

 be
nc
hm

ark
. A

 si
ng

le 
VH

T i
s b

ein
g r

ec
rui
ted

 
in 
Oc

tob
er 

to 
he
lp 
ad
dre

ss
 m

ore
 ef

fec
tiv
e f

oc
us
ed

 co
mm

un
ica

tio
n 

wit
h S

ch
oo
ls 
for

 C
LA

.

Pe
rce

nta
ge
 of

 se
ss
ion

s a
bs
en
t fr

om
 sc

ho
ol 
am

on
gs
t 

sc
ho
ol 
ag
e C

LA
, in

 sc
ho
ol 
ye
ar 

to 
da
te

�
Ne

w
12
% 

(Y
TD

 - 
pro

v)
14
.47

%
12
.55

%
A

He
ad

lin
e:
 N
ew

 Lo
ca
l in

dic
ato

r - 
All
 C
LA

 in
 sc

ho
ol 
- O

ve
ral
l a
bs
en
ce
 

rat
e i
s c

on
sid

era
bly

 hi
gh
. 

Co
nt

ex
t: 
Th

is 
is 
a l
oc
al 
ind

ica
tor

 an
d d

ata
 qu

ali
ty 
iss

ue
s h

av
e b

ee
n 

ide
nti
fie
d t
his

 is
 du

e t
o c

ha
ng

es
 in
 th
e c

oh
ort

 w
ith
 pl
ac
em

en
t m

ov
es
, 

thi
s i
s b

ein
g a

dd
res

se
d, 
the

re 
are

 3 
ch
ild
ren

 w
ho
 m

ay
 be

 im
pa

cti
ng
 

on
 th
e p

erf
orm

an
ce
.

Ac
tio

n:
  D

ata
 cl
ea
n u

p i
s r

eq
uir
ed
 to
 ad

dre
ss
 th
is 
inf
orm

ati
on
, o
ne
 

ch
ild
 is
 no

 lo
ng
er 

CL
A, 

the
 ot

he
r is

 in
 a 
se
cu
re 

un
it a

nd
 en

ga
gin

g 
wit

h s
ch
oo
l a
nd
 th

e o
the

r is
 re

ce
ivin

g h
om

e t
uit
ion

.
Pe

rce
nta

ge
 of

 ch
ild
ren

 w
ith
 an

 In
itia

l C
P c

on
fer

en
ce
 

wit
hin

 15
 w
ork

ing
 da

ys 
of 

str
ate

gy
 di
sc
us
sio

n 
�

82
.90

%
90
%

10
0%

97
.65

%
A

 
  

HR LR A LG HGRA
G

 S
ta

tu
s

Ne
ed

s p
rom

pt 
att

en
tio

n
Po

or
Ad

eq
ua

te
Go

od
Ex

ce
lle

nt 
 

27



28

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

10 January 2012 

Subject: 
 

Housing for Children Looked After who are 
Leaving Local Authority Care 
 

Key Decision:  
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran 
Corporate Director of Children’s Services 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Mitzi Green 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 
 

Yes 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 

• This report seeks to inform the Corporate Parenting Panel about issues 
relating to housing support for children looked after who are leaving 
local authority care. 

 
• Panel members are invited to consider recommendations contained in 

section 3.19 and give guidance on subsequent Cabinet or Portfolio 
Holder decision making arrangements. 

 
 

Agenda Item 8 
Pages 29 to 36 

29



 
 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\6\4\AI00075460\$csnfsr1y.doc 

Section 2 – Report 
Introduction 
 
Children looked after (CLA) and young people who are leaving care (care 
leavers) that have entitlement to housing support are invited to bid for 
accommodation under the Locata Housing Scheme in order that they can be 
housed at the point that they leave local authority care.  
 
2.1 When CLA are 18 years old they become a care leaver and are no longer 
in the care of the local authority. In accordance with duties outlined in the 
Leaving Care Act 2000, care leavers are entitled to receive local authority 
housing support. 
 
2.2 Care leavers are entitled to housing accommodation under Band B of the 
Locata Housing Scheme operated by Harrow Council Housing Department. 
The Housing Department have 22 allocated properties for care leavers in 
2011. However, there has been a significant increase in demand for eligible 
properties for care leavers over recent years.  
 
2.3 In 2012 it is expected that 38 care leavers will be eligible for housing 
under the Locata Housing Scheme. This means that 16 care leavers will be 
unable to be offered the opportunity of securing permanent housing as per the 
Children Act 1989 as amended, as demand is currently in excess of the 
allocation limit. 
 
2.4 In order to prioritise the housing needs of CLA and Care Leavers and 
Housing Group has been established as a sub group to the CLA Life Chances 
Forum. This has relied and the positive relationship between Children’s 
Services and the Housing Department. The CLA Life Chances Forum is a 
multi agency group of practitioners and senior professionals chaired by the 
CLA Service Manager, who is also an officer member of the Corporate 
Parenting Panel.  
 
2.5 The terms of reference for the CLA Life Chances Forum focus on 
improving the life chances and outcomes for CLA. The focus of the Care 
Leavers and Housing Sub Group is to scrutinise current processes, maximise 
the benefit of local partnerships and address specific issues to improve 
housing outcomes for care leavers. An integral aspect of this work will be to 
ascertain the views, wishes and feelings of CLA and care leavers. 
 
2.6 Representatives of the Care Leavers and Housing Sub Group include the 
following; 

• CLA Service Manager 
• Children’s Placement  Service Manager 
• Leaving Care Team Manager 
• Unaccompanied Asylum Seeking Children Team Manager 
• Youth Offending Team Manager 
• Children with Disabilities Team Manager 
• Harrow Foster Carer’s Association 
• Adult Care Services 

30



3 

• Housing Department 
• “Beyond Limits” Child in Care Council 
• Independent Visitor Scheme 
 
 

Options considered 
 
3.0 Issues 
 
3.1 Consultation with Care Leavers 
The Leaving Care Team have issued questionnaires to all care leavers aged 
18 years + who are living in their own tenancy. The questionnaire seeks to 
ascertain care leaver’s views regarding the allocation and suitability of 
accommodation under the Locata Housing Scheme.. 
 
3.3 Increased demand 
There has been a significant increase of teenage CLA aged 15 to 18 years old 
in Harrow’s looked after population. There are a number of factors that have 
contributed to this increase and the Teenage Placement Strategy (TPS) is a 
targeted attempt at addressing the range of issues that having an impact on 
Children’s Services ability to manage services in an efficient and effective 
manner. The Locata Housing Scheme is an important aspect of the TPS. 
 
3.4 Homelessness 
Legislation regarding homeless 16 - 18 year olds has had an impact on local 
services. Following the Southwark Judgement in 2009, which was issued to  
Local Authorities in 2010, Authorities have been reminded about the need to 
ensure that 16 – 18 year olds have a full assessment of need and support for 
education, employment, health and finance, including accommodation. 
 
3.5 Harrow is expected to accommodate any homeless young person (aged 
16 – 18 years old) under section 20 of the Children Act 1989 where it is 
assessed that they are a child in need whenever it is determined that the 
young person has nowhere else to reside and no appropriate adult to care for 
them. There is a joint Housing and Children’s Services Protocol outlining 
detailed procedures for responding to the needs of vulnerable 16 and 17 year 
olds.  
 
3.6 Life Skills Programme and the Readiness Assessment 
Previously the local practice was to defer referring care leavers for permanent 
housing until they were ready to manage and maintain their own tenancy. In 
practice this often delayed timely transitions and ultimately increased CLA 
placement costs. A great deal of work has been undertaken to review the way 
that CLA are supported to acquire the necessary life skills in order to be able 
to make a successful transition to young adulthood. 
 
3.7 In order to ensure that all care leavers are ready to live independently a 
tenancy once they turn 18 years old, a new Life Skills Programme has been 
developed with teenage CLA, care leavers and a range of partners during 
2011. The new Life Skills Programme, which will be launched in January 
2012, provides an individual programme tailored to meet the unique needs 
and circumstances of all care leavers.  

31



4 

 
3.8 The Life Skills Programme will focus on the timely acquisition of 
appropriate life skills for all care leavers. This includes a readiness 
assessment for a broad range of issues, including appropriate practical skills, 
emotional resilience and well-being needs, support requirements and the type 
of education, employment and training conditions that will support a 
successful transition to young adulthood, including managing and maintaining 
a tenancy. 
 
3.9 Locata Housing Scheme Nominations  
Prior to making a Locata nomination, Social Workers will need to evidence 
that CLA have successfully completed a Life Skills Programme and that an 
assessment of their readiness has indicated that a Locata nomination is 
appropriate. This assessment of readiness will include a detailed review of an 
up to date Pathway Plan.  
 
3.10 The Social Worker, with the assistance of other relevant adults where 
appropriate (eg; Foster Carer, Residential Worker or Independent Visitor), will 
support care leavers with their Locata application and once nominated the 
care leaver will be accompanied to view any suitable properties that they are 
intending to bid for. 
 
3.11 Housing Options 
Existing care leavers who are entitled to housing under the Locata Housing 
Scheme should be supported immediately however, as there has been a 
significant increase in the demand for single occupancy one bed social 
housing accommodation, there is a shortage of these types of properties. If 
the Housing Department increase the quota for care leavers this will have a 
real and immediate impact on the availability of available properties for other 
vulnerable groups including homeless people. 
 
3.12 Alternative housing options may now need to be considered in order to 
address the current position. Consideration may need to be given to moving 
into the privately rented sector in order to develop partnerships with 
Registered Social Landlords (RSLs). There are however, concerns that such 
a move pose the risk of developing less secure tenancies and more 
expensive rents than would ordinarily be enjoyed in the social housing sector.  
 
3.13 Although care leavers are provided with advice and support regarding 
appropriate benefits and entitlements, benefits legislation is frequently 
changing and can be difficult system to navigate and entitlements will be 
affected. 
 
3.14 Setting up Grant 
Concern has been expressed about the quality and decorative state of some 
properties that have been allocated under the Locata Housing Scheme. The 
Housing Department provides a standard one off decoration payment of £206 
to meet the costs of decoration expenses in a one bed flat. Care leavers are 
not currently included in the group of new tenants who  have their flat 
decorated by the Council’s contractors at the higher cost of £585. This service 
currently applies to  elderly and disabled tenants. 
 
3.15 At present care leavers usually purchase essential items from the 
Independent Living Grant (ILG). In reality the ILG does not cover the costs of 

32



5 

all essential items and this creates significant difficulties for care leavers 
attempting to set up home.  
. 
3.16 Children’s Services has developed a list of essential items that will be 
provided to care leavers as part of a scheme to alleviate some of the 
additional pressures associated with setting up home. These essential items 
include a cooker, fridge/freezer, and washing machine. 
 
3.17 Ongoing support for Care Leavers 
Children’s Services has a dedicated Leaving Care Team to provide support to 
care leavers aged 18 years and over. In addition to Leaving Care Team staff 
care leavers enjoy  continued support from foster carers, residential care staff 
and independent visitors who maintain enduring relationships and support 
after CLA turn 18 years old. 
 
3.18 Under the Children Act 1989, as amended the Local Authority continues 
to have responsibility for providing certain types of support for care leavers up 
to the age of 25 years if they continue to be in full time higher education. This 
support is equivalent to the type of support that any young person may 
reasonably expect from a caring parent. 
 
3.19 Proposed Recommendations 
 
The Corporate Parenting Panel are asked to consider the following 
recommendations in order to address the Council’s corporate parenting 
responsibilities for care leavers as it relates to housing support; 
  

a) To increase the Locata Housing Scheme allocation for care leavers 
from 22 to 38 in 2012 and to review future demand on an annual basis 
in line with the regular corporate planning cycle 

b) To provide a view about the financial assistance that should be 
provided by the Council to enable care leavers to set up home 

c) To provide a steer about the pro’s and con’s of exploring opportunities 
in the privately rented sector in order to develop partnerships with 
Registered Social Landlords as a way of addressing current housing 
resource pressures for care leavers 

d) To support the collective endeavours of the Care Leavers and Housing 
Sub Group of the CLA Life Chances Forum and task them with the 
responsibility for developing clear operational systems and processes 
for monitoring and reviewing how the housing needs and 
circumstances of care leavers will be addressed by the Council 

e) To note the questionnaire feed back from care leavers regarding the 
suitability and provision of housing provided under the Locata Housing 
Scheme in order to establish a minimum quality standard in the future 

 
Environmental Impact 
 
There is no specific environmental impact from the issues outlined in this 
report. 
 
 
 

33



6 

 
Financial Implications 
 
Care leavers are entitled to claim housing benefit from 18 years old in order to 
cover the costs of their rent. Where care leavers remain in placements 
beyond their 18th birthday, rather than accessing their own tenancy and 
housing benefits, it presents a significant financial cost to the Council. The 
recent reductions made to leaving care placement costs have relied upon an 
adequate supply of suitable accommodation for those leaving care. Over the 
next few years there is a bulge of young people leaving care. The risk is that if 
suitable housing can not be identified young people with remain longer in high 
cost placements, such as semi independent placements. If the lack of 
accommodation results in a 6 months delay in leaving care, based on the 
current cohort of CLA, it is estimated to result in a budget pressure in excess 
of £0.5m. 
 
3.22 Care leavers with additional support needs, for example a learning 
disability, mental illness or substance misuse, will require input from adult 
care services. In these cases the existence of an effective Transition Protocol 
between Children’s and Adult Care Services is essential in order that 
appropriate targeted and specialist care can be provided. In many instances 
the nature and level of the care leaver’s additional needs will have an impact 
on their ability to manage and maintain their own tenancy and it will be critical 
to ensure that appropriate arrangements, including funding, are in place.  
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
All related risks are recorded in the Children’s Services risk register. There is 
a significant reputational risk from a poor inspection of social care, in 
particular any serious or untoward significant incident concerning a care 
leaver. Preparations are in place to mitigate this risk. 
 
Equalities implications 
 
CLA and care leavers are additionally vulnerable child in need. The 2009 
statutory guidance “The Roles & Responsibilities of the Lead Member for 
Children’s Services and the Director of Children’s Services” highlights the 
need for Local Authorities to work corporately to improve the well-being of 
looked after children and young people leaving care, to make their needs a 
priority and seek the same outcomes that any reasonable caring parent would 
want for their own children. CLA consistently fare worse than their peers 
across a range of indicators including health, education, training, employment, 
homelessness and offending.   
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
CLA and care leavers are additionally vulnerable by virtue of the experiences 
that led them into Local Authority care and in respect of the poor outcomes 
that many CLA and care leavers experience when compared to their peers, 

34



7 

The Council’s corporate priorities include providing care and protection to 
those who are most in need and this includes CLA and care leavers. 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 9 December 2011 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Helen Ottino  X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 9 December 2011 

   
 

 
Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact: Peter Tolley, Service Manager, Family Placement Service & Nick 
Crick, Service Manager, Children in Need & Looked After Service 
 
Backgound Papers: None 
 

35



36

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

10 January 2012 

Subject: 
 

Display for Councillors 

Key Decision:  
 

No 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Catherine Doran, Corporate Director of 
Children’s Services 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Councillor Mitzi Green, Portfolio 
Holder for Children’s Services 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Decision subject to 
Call-in: 
 

Yes 

Enclosures: None 
 
Section 1 – Summary and Recommendations 
 
 
This report sets a proposal for publicising the work of Corporate Parenting 
and Beyond Limits (Harrow’s Children in Care Council).   
 
Recommendation:  that 
• The Panel request the Corporate Director of Children’s Services to set up 

a display for Councillors - by members of Corporate Parenting and Beyond 
Limits - at a time that full Council meet in order to engage all Councillors; 

• This year’s display to be set up prior to the 12 April Council meeting; 
• Corporate Parenting considers other means by which to engage 

Councillors in the needs of children looked after. 
 
Reason: (For recommendation) 

Agenda Item 9 
Pages 37 to 40 

37



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\5\AI00075500\$dm3zotoq.doc 2 

 
There is an expectation on Local Authorities from the white paper, ‘Care 
Matters-Time for Change, 2007’ and subsequent legislation that councillors 
understand their corporate parenting responsibilities towards children in care 
and are committed to fulfilling them. 
 
Corporate Parenting Panel has a pivotal role in promoting the needs of 
children looked after 
 

Section 2 – Report 
 
Background  
 
In September 1998 Frank Dobson, the then Secretary of State for Health, 
wrote to all councillors to launch Quality Protects, a five-year programme to 
transform children’s services, underlining their vital role in driving forward the 
initiative. This launched the concept of corporate parenting and placed 
collective responsibility on all local authorities to achieve good parenting for all 
children in the public care. It requires ownership and leadership at a senior 
level and includes all elected members. 
 
Following on from the plans set out in the white paper, ‘Care Matters – A time 
for Change, 2007’, the Children and Young Persons Act, 2008, placed a 
number of requirements upon Local Authorities and Elected Members, the 
aim being to improve outcomes for children in care and their families, with 
corporate parenting, and listening to the views of children and young people 
being key elements.  
 
There is rolling programme of officer led induction training for Councillors in 
relation to their Corporate Parenting responsibilities 
 
In addition, members of Corporate Parenting have participated in training 
events with children looked after which have also been attended by the wider 
Councillor group. 
  
However, the Cabinet approval of the establishment of Beyond Limits on 18th 
November 2010, together with their terms of reference and the Harrow Pledge 
to children looked after, provides a further opportunity to consider a wider 
engagement with other Councillors. 
The setting up of an annual display is seen as one of a number of initiatives 
by Corporate Parenting, together with Beyond Limits to promote the needs of 
children looked after with the wider Councillor group.  
 
There was a very successful display prior the April Council meeting in 2011. 
Young people represented by Beyond Limits and Young Voices interacted 
with Members, and with assistance from Panel and the Participation Officers 

38



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\5\AI00075500\$dm3zotoq.doc 3 

for children looked children after promoted the work of both Panel and Beyond 
Limits. 
 
Options considered 
 
None 
 
Implications of the Recommendation 
 
Approval of the recommendations will provide one of a number of possible 
means of highlighting both the needs of children looked after and the 
corporate parenting responsibilities of elected members. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
The financial cost for any printing and leaflets is being met by way of the Care 
Matters grant which is within the base budget held by the Divisional Director, 
Targeted Services, Children's Services. No additional cost is anticipated. 
 
Risk Management Implications 
 
Risk included on Directorate risk register? No 
  
Separate risk register in place? No  
 
Corporate Priorities 
 
The corporate priority this report incorporates is: 
 
• Improve support for vulnerable people 
 
It will provide an opportunity to engage the wider Councillor group with the 
needs of children looked after and their responsibilities as Corporate Parents. 
 
Section 3 - Statutory Officer Clearance 
 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 9 December 2011 

   
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Helen Ottino X  Monitoring Officer 
 
Date: 9 December 2011 

   
 

 
 
 

39



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\0\0\5\AI00075500\$dm3zotoq.doc 4 

Section 4 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Andreas Kyriacou, Quality Assurance Manager, Vulnerable 
Children andreas.kyriacou@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: None 
 

40



 

REPORT FOR: 
 

CORPORATE 
PARENTING PANEL 
 

Date of Meeting: 
 

10 January 2012 

Subject: 
 

INFORMATION REPORT – 
Corporate Parenting Panel Work 
Programme 2011/12 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Hugh Peart, Director of Legal and 
Governance Services, Catherine 
Doran, Corporate Director of Children’s 
Services 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

Appendix 1 - Corporate Parenting 
Panel Work Programme 2011/12 

 
 
Section 1 – Summary 
 
 
This report sets out the Work Programme for the Corporate Parenting Panel 
for the municipal year 2011/12. 
 
FOR INFORMATION 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 
Pages 41 to 44 

41



 

C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\3\0\6\AI00075603\$djgv0lol.doc 

 

Section 2 – Report 
 
1. A Work Programme has been devised to provide all Members of the 

Panel the opportunity to contribute towards the report setting process 
and to provide an overview of the work conducted previously and future 
work to be undertaken. 

 
2. The agreed Work Programme does not preclude any further items 

being presented to future meetings of the Panel if it is required. 
 
3. The agreed Work Programme is contained in Appendix 1. 
 
Section 3 – Further Information 
 
4. All relevant information is included in the report. 
 
Section 4 – Financial Implications 
 
5. None associated with this specific report. 
 
Section 5 – Equalities implications 
 
6. The Work Programme does not have any equality implications. 
 
Section 6 – Corporate Priorities  
 
7. Adopting a Work Programme for the Corporate Parenting Panel will 

contribute towards the Council’s corporate priority of supporting and 
protecting people who are most in need. 

 
 
 

   
on behalf of the 

Name: Emma Stabler X  Chief Financial Officer 
  
Date: 14 December 2011 

   
 
Section 7 - Contact Details and Background 
Papers 
 
Contact:  Mark Doherty, Democratic Services Officer, 020 8416 8050 
 
Background Papers:  None 
 

42



Ap
pe

nd
ix 

1: 
Co

rp
or

ate
 Pa

ren
tin

g P
an

el 
Wo

rk 
Pr

og
ram

me
 20

11
/20

12
 

 
 DA

TE
 O
F 

ME
ET

IN
G 

Fin
al 

rep
or
ts 

to 
 

De
mo

cra
tic

 
Se

rvi
ce
s 

Re
po

rt 
titl

e a
nd

 pu
rp
os

e 
  

Re
po

rt 
Au

tho
r 

 Tu
es
da

y 1
2 J

uly
 

20
11

 
 

Fri
da

y 2
4 J

un
e 

20
11

 
1) 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 R
ep

ort
 - A

cti
vit

y a
nd

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

 2) 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 re

po
rt -

 Le
av

ing
 C

are
 (a

bo
ut 

ho
w 

we
 he

lp 
the

 
tra

ns
itio

n t
o i

nd
ep

en
de

nc
e a

nd
 th

e m
an

ag
em

en
t 

inf
orm

ati
on

 w
e u

se
 to

 in
for

m 
us

 ab
ou

t o
utc

om
es

 fo
r C

LA
. 

To
 al

so
 in

clu
de

 ho
w 

we
 de

al 
wit

h t
he

 ch
an

ge
 of

 C
LA

 
sta

tus
 to

 su
pp

ort
ed

 lo
dg

ing
s a

nd
 im

pa
ct 

on
 yo

un
g p

eo
ple

) 
  

3) 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 R

ep
ort

 - A
sy

lum
 Se

ek
ers

 (T
he

 su
pp

ort
 w

e 
pro

vid
e A

sy
lum

 Se
ek

ers
, p

art
icu

lar
ly 

aro
un

d e
du

ca
tio

n 
an

d b
ett

er 
ou

tco
me

s) 
 

 

Da
vid

 H
arr

ing
ton

 
 

Ni
ck
 C
ric

k/P
hil

ip 
Ish

ola
/Pe

ter
 To

lle
y 

  
  Ph

ilip
 Is
ho

la 

 
Mo

nd
ay
 3 

Oc
tob

er 
20
11

 
 

 
W

ed
ne

sd
ay

 21
 

Se
pte

mb
er 

20
11

 
1) 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 R
ep

ort
- A

cti
vit

y a
nd

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
. T

o i
nc

lud
e 

an
aly

sis
 of

 G
SC

E r
es

ult
s. 

 2) 
An

nu
al 

Re
po

rt F
os

ter
ing

 an
d A

do
pti

on
. T

o i
nc

lud
e a

na
lys

is 
of 

tar
ge

ts 
se

t a
nd

 ou
tco

me
s 

 
3) 

An
nu

al 
rep

ort
 on

 co
mp

lai
nts

 an
d a

dv
oc

ac
y, 

ch
ild

ren
 

loo
ke

d a
fte

r. T
o i

nc
lud

e a
na

lys
is 

of 
iss

ue
s r

ais
ed

 an
d 

are
as

 of
 le

arn
ing

 
 

4) 
Ve

rba
l fe

ed
ba

ck
 on

 C
ele

bra
tio

n o
f C

hil
dre

n L
oo

ke
d A

fte
r 

Ac
hie

ve
me

nts
 

 

Da
vid

 H
arr

ing
ton

 
 

   Pe
ter

 To
lle

y 
  St
ua

rt 
Da

lto
n 

   Pe
ter

 To
lle

y 
/B
ey
on

d L
im

its
 

43



 
 

Tu
es
da

y 1
0 

Ja
nu

ary
 20

12
 

 
Fri

da
y 9

 D
ec

em
be

r 
20

11
 

 
1) 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 R
ep

ort
- A

cti
vit

y a
nd

 Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

 2) 
Ve

rba
l U

pd
ate

 - s
tal

l fo
r M

em
be

rs 
- F

ull
 C

ou
nc

il 
 

3) 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 R

ep
ort

 - h
ou

sin
g f

or 
yo

un
g p

eo
ple

 le
av

ing
 ca

re 
 

  

 
Da

vid
 H
arr

ing
ton

 
 

An
dr
ea
s 

 Pe
ter

 To
lle

y 
  

 
Tu

es
da

y 3
 A
pr
il 

20
12

 
 

W
ed

ne
sd

ay
 21

 
Ma

rch
 20

12
 

1) 
Inf

orm
ati

on
 R

ep
ort

- A
cti

vit
y a

nd
 Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
 2) 

Inf
orm

ati
on

 R
ep

ort
 - I

RO
 R

ep
ort

 
 

Da
vid

 H
arr

ing
ton

 
  An

dr
ea
s 

 

44


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	7 INFORMATION REPORT - Activity and Performance
	Appendix 1 - Children Looked After & CPP

	8 Housing for Children Looked After who are Leaving Local Authority Care
	9 Display for Councillors
	10 INFORMATION REPORT - Corporate Parenting Panel Work Programme 2011/12
	Appendix 1 - Corporate Parenting Panel Work Programme 2011-2012


